HA-260 1905

St. Margaret's Chapel
141 Hickory Avenue
Bel Air

Private

Gothic was "the only proper style" for a Christian Church
in the 19th century. Churches built in Bel Air during the period
from 1860 to the First World War were all built in that style.
They varied considerably in complexity. This little carpenter
gothic structure is one of the happiest, if the latest, of those
churches. With its board and batten construction, its pointed
arch windows and its little bell tower it is a warm and friendly
expression of a style which can be cold or awesome. It was built
in 1905 by Father J. Alphonse Frederick to be Bel Air's first
Roman Catholic Church, 1In its homely way it represents a unity
of thought rare in Christendom. All local sects reached back to
the years before western Christianity had splintered to express
their fundamental similarity of purpose: the worship of God.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

This small and charming carpenter gothic chapel dominates a little
knoll on the east side of Hickory just north of its intersection with
Lee Way, in the Town of Bel Air, Harford County, Maryland. A quaint
refugee from the mid-nineteenth century, it was built in 1905. It
has all of the characteristics of the proper Gothic Revival small
parish church: board and batten siding, steeply pitched gable roof
in patterned tile, projecting rafters, entrance porches, bell cote.

The chancel even has a different roof line to distinguish it from the
nave. Its pitch is the same as that of the main block, but it is not
so tall. Whether this chancel is an addition or not is not clear.

It has a cement block foundation while the nave has a stone rubble
foundation. It has tar paper on the roof, while the nave's roof is of
tile, and its window (on the north elevation) is pointed arch window
and surround, while those of the nave are rectangular. The differences
(except for the tar paper) can be accounted for by the fact that the
chancel is the site of the most holy parts of the Mass and is thus
separated from the more mundane nave.

The facade (west elevation) 'is divided sharply into three bays by
the central gable roofed entrance porch. Double seven panel doors
are topped by a narrow horizontal transom, an entablature, and a
pediment which echoes the pitch of the roof but which is too small
for the entablature. The rafters project here, as they do on the main
roof. Two square stained glass windows in plain surrounds flank the
entrance porch, their sills almost level with the bottom of the porch
roof. A diamond-shaped stained glass window decorates the gable. The
aisleless nave is five bays long on the north elevation (one bay is
in the chancel); a roofed small gable entrance porch is on this side
in the last east bay of the nave. It has a four panel door. On the
south elevation a two bay ell is at right angles to the building in
the easternmost two bays. This gable roofed, single story ell once
housed the sacristy. It has 6/6 double hung sash windows and a seven
panel door (north to south). A thin stove chimney rises behind the
fourth window on the south elevation. ,

The back of the chancel (the east elevation) is entirely plain
save for a diamond-shaped stained glass window in the gable and a
string course of batten which crosses at eave level giving the gable
the look of a pediment.

The tiny bell tower with its bell still suspended has a cross at
the front (west) gable ridge.

The chapel is now used for parish offices and has been subdivided,
but one can still see the tongue & groove wainscotting. The ceiling
has been dropped to the level of the floor of the choir loft for warmth
and fuel economy, but if one climbs the steep stairs (southwest corner)
to the loft one can see the unadorned roof over a sea of pink insulation.
No hammer beam roof and no exposed rafters.

This simple and reverent Gothic Revival chapel shows in a concrete
way (actually, board and batten way) exactly what the Ecclesiologists
meant when they chose this style for their church reform movement.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

This small Gothic Revival chapel was built in 1905 by Rev. J.
Alphonse Frederick, the pastor of St. Ignatius Church at Hickory.
He had purchased the three acres on which the church and rectory stand
at his own expense in 1901 for $3,500 and built the chapel at his own
expense. In 1919 he transfered it to James Cardinal Gibbons, the
Archbishop of Baltimore (164/27). 1In 1969 the new church was built
and the chapel became the parish offices.

There is no evidence that an architect had anything to do with
the building. By 1905 the Gothic Revival had become such a normal
idiom for the small parish church that no design was needed.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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164/27

100/465

42/495

HA-260

TITLE:
ST. MARGARET'S CHAPEL AND RECTORY

1 May 1919
J. Alphonse Frederick, Baltimore County
to

James Cardinal Gibbons, Archbishop of
Baltimore :

3 a.+ the land on which the chapel and
Pastor's' residence stand

7 January 1901

Thomas Robinson, trustee
to

Alphonse Frederick

7 April 1881
Edwin H. Webster

to
Laura C. Raitt
by 20/342 1868 Webster registered a
deed by which he promised to convey
the property to Cassandra Raitt (she
had paid him $1000) or her heirs. She
died and left it to Laura Raitt (1870,
will 8/154). This deed confirms 20/342.
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